QI.A.198.05. HANI AL-SAYYID AL-SEBAI YUSIF
Date on which the narrative summary became available on the Committee’s website: 7 September 2010

Hani al-Sayyid al-Sebai Yusif was listed on 29 September 2005 pursuant to paragraphs 1 and 2 of resolution 1617 (2005) as being associated with Al-Qaida, Usama bin Laden or the Taliban for “participating in the financing, planning, facilitating, preparing or perpetrating of acts of activities by, in conjunction with, under the name of, on behalf or in support of” Al-Qaida (QI.A.4.01) and Egyptian Islamic Jihad (QE.A.3.01).

Additional information:
Hani al-Sayyid al-Sebai Yusif was a member of Egyptian Islamic Jihad (QE.A.3.01). Al-Sebai Yusif and a number of others from Egyptian Islamic Jihad joined Al-Qaida (QE.A.4.01) in the early 1990s. 

Egyptian Islamic Jihad, headed by Usama bin Laden's (QI.B.8.01) deputy, Aiman Muhammed Rabi al-Zawahiri (QI.A.6.01), was responsible for the bombing of the Egyptian Embassy in Islamabad in 1995. As of 1998, the group received most of its funding from Al-Qaida and in 2001 it merged with Al-Qaida. 
Al-Sebai Yusif has provided material support to Al-Qaida and has conspired to commit terrorist acts. He has traveled internationally using forged documents, he has received military training and has belonged to cells and groups carrying out terrorist operations using force and violence involving intimidation, threats and damage to public and private property, as well as obstructing the activities of the public authorities. Al-Sebai Yusif instructed others to go to Afghanistan to take part in the fighting there. He has used an Internet site to support terrorist acts undertaken by Al-Qaida as well as to maintain contact with a number of supporters around the world. 

Al-Sebai Yusif is wanted by the Egyptian authorities for involvement in terrorist crimes committed inside and outside Egypt, including criminal collusion with intent to commit acts of premeditated killing, destruction of property, unlicensed possession of firearms, ammunition and explosives, membership of a terrorist group, forgery of official and other documents, and theft. 

Related listed individuals and entities:
Egyptian Islamic Jihad (QE.A.3.01), listed on 6 October 2001
Al-Qaida (QE.A.4.01), listed on 6 October 2001

Aiman Muhammed Rabi al-Zawahiri (QI.A.6.01), listed on 25 January 2001
Usama Muhammed Awad bin Laden (QI.B.8.01), listed on 25 January 2001
Abd Allah Mohamed Ragab Abdel Rahman (QI.A.192.05), listed on 29 September 2005
Zaki Ezat Zaki Ahmed (QI.A.193.05), listed on 29 September 2005
Mohammed Ahmed Shawki al Islambolly (QI.A.194.05), listed on 29 September 2005
Al Sayyid Ahmed Fathi Hussein Eliwah (QI.H.195.05), listed on 29 September 2005
Ali Sayyid Muhamed Mustafa Bakri (QI.M.196.05), listed on 29 September 2005
Mahdhat Mursi al-Sayyid Umar (QI.U.197.05), listed on 29 September 2005

QI.A.216.06. ABDULLAH ANSHORI
Date on which the narrative summary became available on the Committee’s website: 7 September 2010

Abdullah Anshori was listed on 21 April 2006 pursuant to paragraphs 1 and 2 of resolution 1617 (2005) as being associated with Al-Qaida, Usama bin Laden or the Taliban for “participating in the financing, planning, facilitating, preparing or perpetrating of acts or activities by, in conjunction with, under the name of, on behalf, or in support of”; "recruiting for"; and “otherwise supporting acts or activities of” Jemaah Islamiyah (QE.J.92.02).

Additional information:

Abdullah Anshori has supported acts of terrorism on behalf of Jemaah Islamiyah (JI) (QE.J.92.02). Members of JI have been trained, funded and directed by Al-Qaida (QE.A.4.01) leadership to pursue Al-Qaida’s agenda, including by executing some of the deadliest terrorist attacks against civilians and government officials in Southeast Asia.

Abdullah Anshori was arrested along with JI emir Abu Bakar Ba'asyir (QI.B.217.06) in Indonesia for subversive activities in the 1980s and was sentenced to nine years in prison. After being released in 1993, he left for Malaysia where he continued to be associated with Ba’asyir. 

Anshori was tasked to recruit Indonesian JI volunteers for paramilitary training in Afghanistan from about 1985 to 1986, and went himself to Afghanistan and Pakistan in the 1990s.

JI’s cadre structure was divided into four geographical regions known as Mantiqi. Appointed by Nurjaman Riduan Isamuddin (QI.I.87.03), Anshori was the head of Mantiqi II, which had responsibility for carrying out the group’s operations throughout Indonesia. Under Anshori, Mantiqi II was closely involved in violence against religious minorities in Maluku and Ambon. It was also affiliated with an organization which was founded by Ba’asyir and used as a financial conduit to support JI’s goals and to bring together the various like-minded groups within Southeast Asia.

Anshori has also planned terrorist attacks on behalf of JI in Singapore.

Additionally, Anshori has represented JI within a coalition of militant groups in the region. This coalition, formed by Ba’asyir and JI in 1999, was responsible for the bombing attack against the Philippine Ambassador to Indonesia in Jakarta in August 2000. The attack was planned by Nurjaman Riduan Isamuddin.

Anshori was one of the most senior JI leaders at large as of April 2009.

 Related listed individuals and entities:
Al-Qaida (QE.A.4.01), listed on 6 October 2001
Jemaah Islamiyah (QE.J.92.02), listed on 25 October 2002

Mohamad Iqbal Abdurrahman (QI.A.86.03), listed on 28 January 2003
Nurjaman Riduan Isamuddin (QI.I.87.03), listed on 28 January 2003
Abu Rusdan (QI.R.186.05), listed on 16 May 2005
Abu Bakar Ba'asyir (QI.B.217.06), listed on 21 April 2006

QI.B.217.06. ABU BAKAR BA'ASYIR
Date on which the narrative summary became available on the Committee’s website: 8 April 2011

Abu Bakar Ba'asyir was listed on 21 April 2006 pursuant to paragraphs 1 and 2 of resolution 1617 (2005) as being associated with Al-Qaida, Usama bin Laden or the Taliban for “participating in the financing, planning, facilitating, preparing or perpetrating of acts or activities by, in conjunction with, under the name of, on behalf or in support of”, “supplying, selling or transferring arms and related materiel to” or “otherwise supporting acts or activities of” Jemaah Islamiyah (QE.J.92.02).   

Additional information: 
Abu Bakar Ba'asyir co-founded Jemaah Islamiyah (JI) (QE.J.92.02) with Abdullah Sungkar on 1 January 1993. After the death of Abdullah Sungkar in 1999, Abu Bakar Ba'asyir assumed the position of JI’s overall leader, or emir, in 2004. 

As JI’s leader, Abu Bakar Ba'asyir authorized terrorist operations and the use of JI operatives and resources for multiple terrorist attacks in Southeast Asia. According to JI members, any significant JI operation required Ba'asyir’s approval, either in person or through his leadership council. Ba'asyir authorized the Bali bombings of 12 October 2002, which killed 202 people; he authorized the use of JI operatives and resources for a plan to conduct simultaneous bomb attacks against United States Embassies in Southeast Asia on or near the first anniversary of the 11 September 2001 terrorist attacks in the United States; he also ordered bomb attacks on churches in 38 locations in 11 cities in Indonesia on 24 December 2000, killing 19 people and wounding approximately 120.  

Ba'asyir also made or approved other important decisions regarding the JI organization. Ba'asyir appointed Nurjaman Riduan Isamuddin (QI.I.87.03), a.k.a. Hambali, as the head of JI in Malaysia and Singapore.

Ba'asyir has called for attacks on the United States, the United Kingdom, Australia, Singapore, Thailand and the Philippines and has urged his followers to commit other violent acts. 

In March 2005, Ba'asyir was convicted in Indonesia for his involvement in the 2002 Bali bombings and was sentenced to 30 months in prison. As a result of two sentence reductions, Abu Bakar Ba’asyir was released from prison on 14 June 2006.

Related listed individuals and entities:
Jemaah Islamiyah (QE.J.92.02), listed on 25 October 2002
Jamaah Anshorut Tauhid (JAT) (QE.J.133.12), listed on 12 March 2012
Nurjaman Riduan Isamuddin (QI.I.87.03), listed on 28 January 2003
Abu Rusdan (QI.R.186.05), listed on 16 May 2005
Zulkarnaen (QI.Z.187.05), listed on 16 May 2005
Abdul Rahim Ba’asyir (QI.B.293.11), listed on 19 July 2011
Mochammad Achwan (QI.A.304.12), listed on 12 March 2012
Abdul Rosyid Ridho Ba’asyir (QI.B.305.12), listed on 12 March 2012

QI.G.218.06. GUN GUN RUSMAN GUNAWAN
Date on which the narrative summary became available on the Committee’s website: 8 April 2011

Gun Gun Rusman Gunawan was listed on 21 April 2006 pursuant to paragraphs 1 and 2 of resolution 1617 (2005) as being associated with Al-Qaida, Usama bin Laden or the Taliban for “participating in the financing, planning, facilitating, preparing or perpetrating of acts or activities by, in conjunction with, under the name of, on behalf or in support of”, “supplying, selling or transferring arms and related materiel to” or “otherwise supporting acts or activities of” the Taliban, Al-Qaida (QE.A.4.01) and Jemaah Islamiyah (QE.J.92.02).  

Additional information: 
Gun Gun Rusman Gunawan was a leader and founder of a Jemaah Islamiyah (JI) (QE.J.92.02) group in Pakistan known as Al-Ghuraba. This group was established with the approval of Gunawan's older brother, Al-Qaida (QE.A.4.01) leader and former JI chief of operations Hambali, listed as Nurjaman Riduan Isamuddin (QI.I.87.03). Al-Ghuraba was formed to groom the next generation of JI leaders, provide them with training in weapons and explosives, and give them firsthand experience in militant operations. The group reportedly also served as a JI sleeper cell.  

Gunawan instructed Al-Ghuraba cell members on the need to fight against the United States and to overthrow governments in Southeast Asia. Among other things, he provided instructions on suicide and hijacking operations.

Gunawan was also an Al-Qaida facilitator and was given authority to coordinate contact between the Al-Ghuraba cell and the Taliban. He frequently met Al-Qaida members and played the role of an Al-Qaida conduit in Karachi for fighters in Pakistan. He also served as an e-mail conduit between a senior Al-Qaida member and Hambali.

Gunawan was arrested in Pakistan in September 2003 and deported to Indonesia in December 2003. In October 2004, he was convicted in Indonesia for having helped fund the August 2003 bombing of the Marriott Hotel in Jakarta, which killed 12 people, and was sentenced to four years in prison. Gunawan admitted to facilitating the transfer of Al-Qaida funds to Hambali and carrying out orders from him.

Related listed individuals and entities:
Al-Qaida (QE.A.4.01), listed on 6 October 2001
Jemaah Islamiyah (QE.J.92.02), listed on 25 October 2002

Nurjaman Riduan Isamuddin (QI.I.87.03), listed on 28 January 2003
Abu Rusdan (QI.R.186.05), listed on 16 May 2005
Zulkarnaen (QI.Z.187.05), listed on 16 May 2005
Abu Bakar Ba'asyir (QI.B.217.06), listed on 21 April 2006
Muhammad Jibril Abdul Rahman (QI.A.295.11), listed on 12 August 2011

 QI.R.219.06. TAUFIK RIFKI
Date on which the narrative summary became available on the Committee’s website: 8 April 2011

Taufik Rifki was listed on 21 April 2006 pursuant to paragraphs 1 and 2 of resolution 1617 (2005) as being associated with Al-Qaida, Usama bin Laden or the Taliban for “participating in the financing, planning, facilitating, preparing or perpetrating of acts or activities by, in conjunction with, under the name of, on behalf or in support of”, “supplying, selling or transferring arms and related materiel to” or “otherwise supporting acts or activities of” Jemaah Islamiyah (QE.J.92.02).  

Additional information: 
Taufik Rifki, as Jemaah Islamiyah's (JI) (QE.J.92.02) finance officer in the Philippines, has served as a major conduit for funding terrorist operations and training activities in southern Philippines. Rifki has also served as JI’s logistics officer and as a liaison to other militant groups in the Philippines. In 1998, Rifki was trained in weapons, explosives and map reading at a terrorist training camp in the Philippines and later became an instructor there. He has been suspected of being involved in various attacks across southern Philippines, including a series of deadly bombings in Mindanao, the Philippines, in 2003. 

He became Fathur Rohman al-Ghozi’s (deceased) deputy as leader of JI in southern Philippines.

In October 2003, Rifki was arrested in a JI safe house in Cotabato City, the Philippines, which reportedly held biological and chemical warfare manuals. 

Related listed individuals and entities:
Jemaah Islamiyah (QE.J.92.02), listed on 25 October 2002

Nurjaman Riduan Isamuddin (QI.I.87.03), listed on 28 January 2003
Abu Rusdan (QI.R.186.05), listed on 16 May 2005
Zulkarnaen (QI.Z.187.05), listed on 16 May 2005
Abu Bakar Ba'asyir (QI.B.217.06), listed on 21 April 2006

QI.A.226.06. NAJMUDDIN FARAJ AHMAD 
Date on which the narrative summary became available on the Committee’s website: 8 April 2011

Najmuddin Faraj Ahmad was listed on 7 December 2006 pursuant to paragraphs 1 and 2 of resolution 1617 (2005) as being associated with Al-Qaida, Usama bin Laden or the Taliban for “participating in the financing, planning, facilitating, preparing or perpetrating of acts or activities by, in conjunction with, under the name of, on behalf, or in support of”, “supplying, selling or transferring arms and related materiel to” or “otherwise supporting acts or activities of” Ansar al-Islam (QE.A.98.03).

Additional information: 
Najmuddin Faraj Ahmad, based in Norway, was responsible for founding Ansar al-Islam (QE.A.98.03) in December 2001 and served as its first leader. 

Ahmad has provided support for Ansar al-Islam’s operations in Iraq and is believed to have arranged funding through associates in Bulgaria and Iraq. Ahmad established a non-governmental organization that sent money and recruits from European countries to Ansar al-Islam and other terrorist groups. Ahmad visited Germany several times to raise funds for Ansar al-Islam and provide other logistical support.

Ahmad also encouraged Ansar al-Islam members to carry out and support terrorist activities in Iraq. The group established at least two sniper teams in Iraq through an operative who claimed to be Ahmad’s representative in Iraq. Ahmad also traveled regularly from Norway to northern Iraq. During one of his longer stays in northern Iraq, Ahmad recruited and trained combatants.

Ahmad’s own statements associate him with Al-Qaida (QE.A.4.01) leader Usama bin Laden (QI.B.8.01). Ahmad’s autobiography, “Med egne ord” (“In my own words”), provides an account of a 1990 meeting with Bin Laden at which Ahmad solicited money on behalf of his extremist movement in northern Iraq. Though Bin Laden refused the request, Ahmad solicited funds from Bin Laden via emissaries on at least two further occasions.

Ahmad has been a proponent of suicide bombings, and has expressed his willingness to become a suicide bomber himself, suggesting that the United States Embassy in Oslo, Norway, would be a good target for such an act. Ahmad has also been active in exhorting others to violence, including through various interviews. 

Related listed individuals and entities:
Al-Qaida (QE.A.4.01), listed on 6 October 2001
Ansar al-Islam (QE.A.98.03), listed on 24 February 2003

Usama Muhammed Awad bin Laden (QI.B.8.01), listed on 25 January 2001

QI.A.274.10 NASIR ‘ABD-AL-KARIM ‘ABDULLAH AL-WAHISHI
Date on which the narrative summary became available on the Committee’s website: 19 January 2010

Nasir ‘abd-al-Karim ‘Abdullah al-Wahishi was listed on 19 January 2010 pursuant to paragraph 2 of resolution 1904 (2009) as being associated with Al-Qaida, Usama bin Laden or the Taliban for “participating in the financing, planning, facilitating, preparing, or perpetrating of acts or activities by, in conjunction with, under the name of, on behalf of, or in support of ”, “supplying, selling or transferring arms and related materiel to”, “ recruiting for” and “otherwise supporting acts or activities of ” Al-Qaida (QE.A.4.01) Usama bin Laden (QI.B.8.01), the Taliban and Al-Qaida in the Arabian Peninsula (AQAP) (QE.A.129.10). 

Additional information:
Nasir ‘abd-al-Karim ‘Abdullah al-Wahishi is the leader of Al-Qaida in the Arabian Peninsula (AQAP) (QE.A.129.10), an Al-Qaida (QE.A.4.01) affiliate based in Yemen. From 2007, Al-Wahishi was the leader of Al-Qaida in Yemen, which merged with Al-Qaida operatives in Saudi Arabia to form AQAP in January 2009. Its members have been responsible for planning and carrying out attacks targeting the United States Embassy in Yemen, tourists, aid workers, counterterrorism officials and oil facilities in Yemen, as well as targets elsewhere. 

Al-Wahishi has direct ties to Al-Qaida and its senior leadership, having been a secretary to Usama bin Laden (QI.B.8.01), to whom he has sworn allegiance. In late February 2008, Aiman Muhammed Rabi al-Zawahiri (QI.A.6.01), Bin Laden's deputy, described Al-Wahishi as the “Emir of the Mujahidin in Yemen”. 

Under Al-Wahishi's leadership, AQAP has undertaken several attacks in Yemen. In March 2009, AQAP carried out two suicide bombings against South Korean tourists and government officials in Yemen, killing four. In June 2009, AQAP kidnapped nine foreign nationals in Yemen, killing three. Al-Wahishi is believed to have been involved in the August 2009 assassination attempt against Saudi Prince Muhammad bin Nayif, Assistant Minister of Interior for Security Affairs. AQAP has also claimed responsibility for the December 2009 failed attack on a Northwest Airlines flight from Amsterdam, the Netherlands, to Detroit, the United States. 

Al-Wahishi has provided significant support for AQAP terrorist operations and has worked with AQAP operatives to facilitate attacks. He is responsible for approving targets, recruiting new members, allocating resources to training and attack planning, and tasking others to carry out attacks. 

While the leader of AQAP’s predecessor organization, Al-Qaida in Yemen, Al-Wahishi was responsible for the September 2008 attack against the United States Embassy in Yemen.

Al-Wahishi, a Yemeni citizen, was arrested in Iran and extradited to Yemen in 2003. He escaped from a Yemeni prison along with 22 others in 2006. Following his escape, an Interpol issued an Orange Notice for Al-Wahishi. Interpol described Al-Wahishi as constituting a clear and present danger.

Related listed individuals and entities:
Al-Qaida (QE.A.4.01), listed on 6 October 2001
Al-Qaida in the Arabian Peninsula (AQAP)  (QE.A.129.10), listed on 19 January 2010
Aiman Muhammed Rabi al-Zawahiri (QI.A.6.01), listed on 25 January 2001
Usama Muhammed Awad bin Laden (QI.B.8.01), listed on 25 January 2001
Said Ali al-Shihri (QI.A.275.10), listed on 19 January 2010
Nayif bin-Muhammad al-Qahtani (QI.A.281.10), listed on 11 May 2010
Qasim Yahya Mahdi al-Rimi (QI.A.282.10), listed on 11 May 2010
Anwar Nasser Abdulla al-Aulaqi (QI.A.283.10), listed on 20 July 2010
Fahd Mohammed Ahmed al-Quso (QI.A.288.10), listed on 7 December 2010
Ibrahim Hassan Tali al-Asiri (QI.A.291.11), listed on 24 March 2011
Othman Ahmed Othman al-Ghamdi (QI.A.292.11), listed on 16 June 2011 

QI.A.275.10 SAID ALI AL-SHIHRI
Date on which the narrative summary became available on the Committee’s website: 19 January 2010

Said Ali al-Shihri was listed on 19 January 2010 pursuant to paragraph 2 of resolution 1904 (2009) as being associated with Al-Qaida, Usama bin Laden or the Taliban for “participating in the financing, planning, facilitating, preparing, or perpetrating of acts or activities by, in conjunction with, under the name of, on behalf of, or in support of ”, “supplying, selling or transferring arms and related materiel to”, “ recruiting for” and “otherwise supporting acts or activities of ” Al-Qaida (QE.A.4.01) Usama bin Laden (QI.B.8.01), the Taliban and Al-Qaida in the Arabian Peninsula (AQAP) (QE.A.129.10). 

Additional information:
Said Ali al-Shihri has been the deputy leader of Al-Qaida in the Arabian Peninsula (QE.A.129.10) (AQAP), an Al-Qaida affiliate based in Yemen, since its inception in January 2009. Al-Shihri has repeatedly proclaimed his loyalty to Al-Qaida (QE.A.4.01), Usama bin Laden (QI.B.8.01), Aiman Muhammed Rabi al-Zawahiri (QI.A.6.01) and AQAP leader Nasir ‘abd-al-Karim ‘Abdullah al-Wahishi (QI.A.274.10). 

Speaking as AQAP's deputy leader, Al-Shihri declared war and advocated violence against the United States and its supporters in the Arabian Peninsula. 

Under Al-Shihri’s command, AQAP was responsible for the March 2009 suicide bombings against South Korean tourists and government officials in Yemen that killed four, and for the kidnapping of nine foreigners in Yemen - and the subsequent execution of three of them - in June 2009. In addition, he likely played a critical role in the August 2009 assassination attempt against Saudi Prince Muhammad bin Nayif, the Assistant Minister of Interior for Security Affairs. Al-Shihri is also believed to have played a key operational role in the September 2008 attack against the United States Embassy in Yemen undertaken by Al-Qaida in Yemen listed as a.k.a. of Al-Qaida in the Arabian Peninsula and AQAP’s predecessor organization. AQAP has also claimed responsibility for the December 2009 failed bombing of a Northwest Airlines flight from Amsterdam, the Netherlands, to Detroit, the United States. 

As deputy leader of AQAP, Al-Shihri has been involved in identifying targets; recruiting new members; assisting with training and attack planning; and tasking others in the preparation of attacks. 

Al-Shihri was listed among Saudi Arabia's 85 most wanted terrorists in February 2009. He was charged by Saudi Arabia with “joining Al-Qaida in Yemen, under the leadership of Al-Wahishi; being appointed as Al-Wahishi’s deputy; making direct threats to carry out acts of terrorism and the assassination of senior officials and security officials in the Kingdom.”

Related listed individuals and entities:
Al-Qaida (QE.A.4.01), listed on 6 October 2001
Al-Qaida in the Arabian Peninsula (AQAP) (QE.A.129.10), listed on 19 January 2010 

Aiman Muhammed Rabi al-Zawahiri (QI.A.6.01), listed on 25 January 2001
Usama Muhammed Awad bin Laden (QI.B.8.01), listed on 25 January 2001
Nasir ‘abd-al-Karim ‘Abdullah al-Wahishi (QI.A.274.10), listed on 19 January 2010
Nayif bin-Muhammad al-Qahtani (QI.A.281.10), listed on 11 May 2010
Qasim Yahya Mahdi al-Rimi (QI.A.282.10), listed on 11 May 2010
Anwar Nasser Abdulla al-Aulaqi (QI.A.283.10), listed on 20 July 2010
Fahd Mohammed Ahmed al-Quso (QI.A.288.10), listed on 7 December 2010
Ibrahim Hassan Tali al-Asiri (QI.A.291.11), listed on 24 March 2011
Othman Ahmed Othman al-Ghamdi (QI.A.292.11), listed on 16 June 2011

QI.A.276.10. AKRAM TURKI HISHAN AL-MAZIDIH 

Date on which the narrative summary became available on the Committee’s website: 11 March 2010

Akram Turki Hishan al-Mazidih was listed on 11 March 2010 pursuant to paragraphs 1 and 2 of resolution 1904 (2009) as being associated with Al-Qaida, Usama bin Laden or the Taliban for “participating in the financing, planning, facilitating, preparing or perpetrating of acts or activities by, in conjunction with, under the name of, on behalf or in support of”, “supplying, selling or transferring arms and related materiel to”, and “otherwise supporting acts or activities of” Al-Qaida in Iraq (QE.J.115.04).

Additional information:
Akram Turki Hishan al-Mazidih has been a member of the Al-Qaida in Iraq (AQI) (QE.J.115.04) facilitation network once led by Badran Turki Hishan al-Mazidih (not listed), and was the latter’s media facilitator. 

As of late September 2005, Akram acted on behalf of AQI to issue decrees and to order the execution of AQI’s enemies. Akram issued at least one decree ordering the execution of all persons found to be working with the Iraqi Government or Coalition Forces in Iraq, and at least one of Akram’s decrees resulted in the execution of two Iraqis in Al Qa’im, Iraq. As of early 2006, AQI leaders Akram and Badran directed AQI operations near Al Qa’im, Iraq. In one instance in late November 2006, Akram rented a pickup truck to smuggle weapons from Syria for use in Iraq.

Related listed individuals and entities: 
Al-Qaida in Iraq (QE.J.115.04), listed on 18 October 2004

Ghazy Fezza Hishan al-Mazidih (QI.A.277.10)

QI.A.277.10. GHAZY FEZZA HISHAN AL-MAZIDIH 

Date on which the narrative summary became available on the Committee’s website: 11 March 2010

Ghazy Fezza Hishan al-Mazidih was listed on 11 March 2010 pursuant to paragraphs 1 and 2 of resolution 1904 (2009) as being associated with Al-Qaida, Usama bin Laden or the Taliban for “participating in the financing, planning, facilitating, preparing or perpetrating of acts or activities by, in conjunction with, under the name of, on behalf or in support of”, “supplying, selling or transferring arms and related materiel to”, and “otherwise supporting acts or activities of” Al-Qaida in Iraq (QE.J.115.04).

Additional information:
Ghazy Fezza Hishan al-Mazidih has been a member and second-in-command of the Al-Qaida in Iraq (AQI) (QE.J.115.04) facilitation network once led by Badran Turki Hishan al-Mazidih (not listed). As of March 2006, Ghazy was Badran’s deputy. Ghazy worked directly with Badran, managed network operations and acted as the commander for Badran’s AQI network when Badran traveled. As of late September 2006, Ghazy and Badran were planning an AQI attack against Coalition Forces in Iraq and Iraqi police in Qusaybah, Iraq. Ghazy and Badran planned to use rockets to attack multiple Coalition Forces outposts and Iraqi police stations, in an attempt to facilitate an AQI takeover of Qusaybah.

Related listed individuals and entities: 
Al-Qaida in Iraq (AQI) (QE.J.115.04), listed on 18 October 2004

Akram Turki Hishan al-Mazidih (QI.A.276.10), listed on 11 March 2010

QI.A.278.10 MUTHANNA HARITH AL-DARI 

Date on which the narrative summary became available on the Committee’s website: 25 March 2010

Muthanna Harith al-Dari was listed on 25 March 2010 pursuant to paragraphs 1 and 2 of resolution 1904 (2009) as being associated with Al-Qaida, Usama bin Laden or the Taliban for “participating in the financing, planning, facilitating, preparing or perpetrating of acts or activities by, in conjunction with, under the name of, on behalf or in support of”, “supplying, selling or transferring arms and related materiel to”, “recruiting for” and “otherwise supporting acts or activities of” Al-Qaida in Iraq (QE.J.115.04).

Additional information:
Muthanna Harith al-Dari has provided financial support and other services to or in support of Al-Qaida in Iraq (AQI) (QE.J.115.04). In one instance, in October 2008, Al-Dari provided $1 million to an AQI member who recruited Iraqis in Syria and Al-Anbar province, Iraq. Al-Dari told the AQI member to tell new AQI recruits that they would be paid up to $10,000 upon completion of their training. Additionally, as of 2008, Al-Dari financed an AQI cell targeting the Iraqi Army and the Multi-National Force - Iraq.

Al-Dari has also provided operational guidance to AQI for attacks on civilian targets in Iraq. In mid-August 2008, Al-Dari attended training meetings conducted by AQI, during which he explained AQI's future intentions to trainees. Al-Dari told the trainees that changes were necessary in order to achieve greater attacks. Al-Dari also stated that if members receiving the training were unsuccessful, they would be replaced quickly with other AQI members. Al-Dari told trainees that all available support from AQI would be offered across Iraq for their operations. Al-Dari also advised the trainees that he and two other individuals would be traveling to Baghdad to begin re-supplying AQI leaders with equipment. 

Related listed individuals and entities:

Al-Qaida in Iraq (QE.J.115.04), listed on 18 October 2004

QI.B.279.10. MOHAMED BELKALEM
Date on which the narrative summary became available on the Committee’s website: 22 April 2010

Mohamed Belkalem was listed on 22 April 2010 pursuant to paragraphs 1 and 2 of resolution 1904 (2009) as being associated with Al-Qaida, Usama bin Laden or the Taliban for “participating in the financing, planning, facilitating, preparing or perpetrating of acts or activities by, in conjunction with, under the name of, on behalf or in support of” or “supplying, selling or transferring arms and related materiel to” the Organization of Al-Qaida in the Islamic Maghreb (QE.T.14.01) and Armed Islamic Group (QE.A.6.01). 

Additional information:
In 1993, Mohamed Belkalem joined the Armed Islamic Group (GIA, QE.A.6.01) and received training from Saifi Ammari (QI.A.152.03). In 1995, he participated in an ambush against security forces in the region of Akfadou, Algeria. He also kidnapped and executed an Algerian citizen. Between 1995 and 1998, he was implicated in several bombings against civilians and security forces in the region of great Kabylie, Setif, Jijel and Bouira, Algeria.    

Between 1992 and 2002, Mohamed Belkalem organized several fake police check points where he managed with his associates to obtain significant amounts of money to finance their criminal activities.

In 2004, Mohamed Belkalem and Zaouidi Belkacem, a.k.a. Abou Oussama Elmerdassi, joined Organization of Al-Qaida in the Islamic Maghreb (AQIM, QE.T.14.01) leader Mokhtar Belmokhtar (QI.B.136.03) and his group, which is mainly active in the northern region of Mali.

In June 2005, he participated in an attack against the Mauritanian military base of El M’gheiti. In 2006, he took part in an attack against an Algerian customs patrol in the region of Almenea, Algeria. 

In 2008, Mohamed Belkalem participated in the kidnapping of two Austrian tourists in Tunisia conducted by an AQIM group led by Abid Hammadou (QI.H.250.08), a.k.a. Abdelhamid Abou Zeid, which is also active in the northern region of Mali.

On 28 March 1996, Mohamed Belkalem was found guilty of terrorist crimes in abstentia by an Algerian court. The Tribunal of Sidi M’hamed, Algiers, Algeria, issued an international warrant for his arrest in 2009.

Related listed individuals and entities:
Al-Qaida (QE.A.4.01), listed on 6 October 2001
Armed Islamic Group (QE.A.6.01), listed on 6 October 2001
The Organization of Al-Qaida in the Islamic Maghreb (QE.T.14.01), listed on 6 October 2001

Mokhtar Belmokhtar (QI.B.136.03), listed on 11 November 2003
Saifi Ammari (QI.A.152.03), listed on 4 December 2003
Abid Hammadou (QI.H.250.08), listed on 3 July 2008

 QI.N.280.10. TAYEB NAIL
Date on which the narrative summary became available on the Committee’s website: 22 April 2010

Tayeb Nail was listed on 22 April 2010 pursuant to paragraphs 1 and 2 of resolution 1904 (2009) as being associated with Al-Qaida, Usama bin Laden or the Taliban for “participating in the financing, planning, facilitating, preparing or perpetrating of acts or activities by, in conjunction with, under the name of, on behalf or in support of” or “supplying, selling or transferring arms and related materiel to” the Organization of Al-Qaida in the Islamic Maghreb (QE.T.14.01) and Armed Islamic Group (QE.A. 6.01). 

Additional information:
In 2004, Tayeb Nail travelled to the north of Mali where he joined the Organization of Al-Qaida in the Islamic Maghreb (QE.T.14.01) group led by Mokhtar Belmokhtar (QI.B.136.03).

Since then, Tayeb Nail has been active on behalf of the organization. In 2005, he participated in an attack against the Mauritanian military base of El M’gheiti and then joined a terrorist cell in charge of kidnapping foreign nationals, planning and conducting bombings and recruiting new members. 

In 2007, Tayeb Nail managed to obtain a counterfeit Malian identity document in the city of Gao, Mali.

In 2008, he was involved in the transportation of 200 kilograms of fertilizer by Malian national Aissa Ould Saleck. The fertilizer was to be used to make improvised explosives. 

Tayeb Nail has also taken part in several fake police check points in the region of Boukhil, Algeria, and was involved in an attack on an Algerian military unit in 1999. 

The Tribunal of Sidi M’hamed, Algiers, Algeria, issued an international warrant for his arrest in 2009. 

Related listed individuals and entities:
The Organization of Al-Qaida in the Islamic Maghreb (QE.T.14.01), listed on 6 October 2001

Mokhtar Belmokhtar (QI.B.136.03), listed on 11 November 2003 

QI.A.281.10. NAYIF BIN-MUHAMMAD AL-QAHTANI

Date on which the narrative summary became available on the Committee’s website: 11 May 2010

Nayif bin-Muhammad al-Qahtani was listed on 11 May 2010 pursuant to paragraph 2 of resolution 1904 (2009) as being associated with Al-Qaida, Usama bin Laden or the Taliban for “participating in the financing, planning, facilitating, preparing, or perpetrating of acts or activities by, in conjunction with, under the name of, on behalf of, or in support of ”, “recruiting for”, and “otherwise supporting acts or activities of ” Al-Qaida (QE.A.4.01) and Al-Qaida in the Arabian Peninsula (AQAP) (QE.A.129.10). 

Additional information:
Nayif bin-Muhammad al-Qahtani is a leader of Al-Qaida in the Arabian Peninsula (AQAP) (QE.A.129.10) whose main role has been to serve as a liaison between cells in Yemen and Saudi Arabia. He has also managed a number of AQAP operations in Yemen and received financial support from abroad to support attacks against targets in both Yemen and Saudi Arabia. In addition to planning, financing, and overseeing terrorist attacks, Al-Qahtani also has served as a spokesperson for AQAP. He has been a regular contributor to AQAP's Sada al Malahim online magazine, contributing to the content of at least five issues released within the past two years. 

Since its creation, AQAP has claimed responsibility for the March 2009 suicide bombings that killed four Korean tourists in Yemen, and is reportedly responsible for the kidnapping of nine foreigners in Yemen, and the execution of three of them, in June 2009. Additionally, AQAP has claimed responsibility for the 25 December 2009 attempted bombing of a Northwest Airlines flight traveling between Amsterdam and Detroit by Umar Farouk Abdulmutallab. 

Al-Qahtani is believed to have planned and financed the bombing of the United States Embassy in Sanaa on 17 September 2008, which killed nineteen, including the attackers. Al-Qaida in Saudi Arabia issued a statement claiming responsibility for the attack which included specific details about the operation. After the attack, Al-Qahtani released an article discussing the attack. On 25 July 2008, Al-Qaida in Yemen claimed responsibility for an attack on a police compound. The attack killed one and injured eighteen. Al-Qahtani, along with twelve others, has been linked to the planning of the attack.

In March 2008, Al-Qahtani posted a message titled “Let Us Go to Yemen” on an Al-Qaida website urging operatives in Saudi Arabia to move to Yemen to avoid arrest. He also suggested that those who went to Yemen would have no need to worry about the monetary aspects of their move, implying that he would be able to finance those who followed his advice. In a January 2008 interview, Al-Qahtani pledged allegiance to Usama bin Laden (QI.B.8.01) and has also promised to follow AQAP emir Nasir ‘abd-al-Karim ‘Abdullah al-Wahishi (QI.A.274.10). Al-Qahtani has publicly called for the use of terrorism to achieve AQAP’s objectives. 

On 2 July 2007, an Al-Qaida in Yemen (a predecessor group of AQAP) suicide bomber attacked the Balqis Temple in Marib, Yemen, killing eight Spanish tourists, two Yemeni citizens and injuring twelve others in the area. Al-Qahtani is believed to have been involved in the preparation, supervision, and implementation of the attack. 

Even prior to the creation of AQAP, Al-Qahtani was engaged in the financing, planning and execution of terrorist acts. As proclaimed leader of Al-Qaida in Saudi Arabia, one of the predecessor organizations to AQAP, Al-Qahtani was focused on targeting critical oil infrastructure. His attacks were not limited to Saudi Arabia. In September 2006 he was accused by the Yemeni authorities of supplying the explosives for two suicide attacks on oil facilities in Yemen. After the creation of AQAP, Al-Qahtani continued planning for targeted attacks on oil producing facilities. 

Related listed individuals and entities:
Al-Qaida (QE.A.4.01), listed on 6 October 2001
Al-Qaida in the Arabian Peninsula (AQAP) (QE.A.129.10), listed on 19 January 2010

Usama Muhammed Awad bin Laden (QI.B.8.01), listed on 25 January 2001 
Nasir ‘abd-al-Karim ‘Abdullah al-Wahishi (QI.A.274.10), listed on 19 January 2010
Said Ali al-Shihri (QI.A.275.10), listed on 19 January 2010
Qasim Yahya Mahdi al-Rimi (QI.A.282.10), listed on 11 May 2010
Anwar Nasser Abdulla al-Aulaqi (QI.A.283.10), listed on 20 July 2010
Fahd Mohammed Ahmed al-Quso (QI.A.288.10), listed on 7 December 2010
Ibrahim Hassan Tali al-Asiri (QI.A.291.11), listed on 24 March 2011
Othman Ahmed Othman al-Ghamdi (QI.A.292.11), listed on 16 June 20

QI.A.282.10. QASIM YAHYA MAHDI AL-RIMI

Date on which the narrative summary became available on the Committee’s website: 11 May 2010

Qasim Yahya Mahdi al-Rimi was listed on 11 May 2010 pursuant to paragraph 2 of resolution 1904 (2009) as being associated with Al-Qaida, Usama bin Laden or the Taliban for “participating in the financing, planning, facilitating, preparing, or perpetrating of acts or activities by, in conjunction with, under the name of, on behalf of, or in support of ”, “supplying, selling or transferring arms and related materiel to”, “ recruiting for”, and “otherwise supporting acts or activities of ” Al-Qaida (QE.A.4.01) and Al-Qaida in the Arabian Peninsula (AQAP) (QE.A.129.10). 

Additional information:
Qasim Yahya Mahdi al-Rimi is Al-Qaida in the Arabian Peninsula’s (AQAP) (QE.A.129.10) senior leader for terrorist operations. He was sentenced to five years in prison in 2005 after being convicted in Yemen of plotting to assassinate the United States Ambassador to Yemen.  He, along with AQAP's current emir, Nasir ‘abd-al-Karim ‘Abdullah al-Wahishi (QI.A.274.10), escaped from prison in Yemen in 2006.

Since his escape, Al-Rimi has played a key role in reviving the regional node of Al-Qaida (QE.A. 4.01). In 2007, he and Al-Wahishi announced the emergence of Al-Qaida in Yemen (AQAP’s predecessor) and carried out a July 2007 attack on a convoy of Spanish tourists in Mareb province, Yemen that killed nine people.

Since its creation, AQAP has claimed responsibility for the March 2009 suicide bombings that killed four Korean tourists in Yemen, and is reportedly responsible for the kidnapping of nine foreigners in Yemen, and the execution of three of them, in June 2009. Additionally, AQAP has claimed responsibility for the 25 December 2009 attempted bombing of a Northwest Airlines flight traveling between Amsterdam and Detroit by Umar Farouk Abdulmutallab.  

Al-Rimi has played a key operational role and held positions of authority in AQAP and formerly Al-Qaida in Yemen, both of which have publicly claimed responsibility for planning and carrying out assassinations, suicide bombings, and attacks against critical infrastructure with targets including the United States Embassy in Sanaa, tourists, aid workers, Yemeni counterterrorism officials, and oil facilities. Al-Rimi has planned and directed such acts of terrorism. Al-Rimi has also played an important role in recruiting the current generation of militants making up the Yemen-based AQAP.

Related listed individuals and entities:
Al-Qaida (QE.A.4.01), listed on 6 October 2001
Al-Qaida in the Arabian Peninsula (AQAP) (QE.A.129.10), listed on 19 January 2010 

Nasir ‘abd-al-Karim ‘Abdullah al-Wahishi (QI.A.274.10), listed on 19 January 2010
Said Ali al-Shihri (QI.A.275.10), listed on 19 January 2010
Nayif bin-Muhammad al-Qahtani (QI.A.281.10), listed on 11 May 2010 
Anwar Nasser Abdulla al-Aulaqi (QI.A.283.10), listed on 20 July 2010
Fahd Mohammed Ahmed al-Quso (QI.A.288.10), listed on 7 December 2010
Ibrahim Hassan Tali al-Asiri (QI.A.291.11), listed on 24 March 2011
Othman Ahmed Othman al-Ghamdi (QI.A.292.11), listed on 16 June 2011

QI.A.283.10. ANWAR NASSER ABDULLA AL-AULAQI

Date on which the narrative summary became available on the Committee’s website: 20 July 2010

Anwar Nasser Abdulla al-Aulaqi was listed on 20 July 2010 pursuant to paragraph 2 of resolution 1904 (2009) as being associated with Al-Qaida, Usama bin Laden or the Taliban for “participating in the financing, planning, facilitating, preparing, or perpetrating of acts or activities by, in conjunction with, under the name of, on behalf of, or in support of”, “recruiting for”, and “otherwise supporting acts or activities of ” Al-Qaida (QE.4.01) and Al-Qaida in the Arabian Peninsula (AQAP) (QE.A.129.10). 

Additional information:
A dual U.S. - Yemeni citizen, Anwar Nasser Abulla al-Aulaqi is a leader of Al-Qaida in the Arabian Peninsula (AQAP) (QE.A.129.10). He has pledged an oath of loyalty to AQAP emir Nasir al-Wahishi (QI.A.274.10), and has played a key role in setting the strategic direction for AQAP. Al-Aulaqi has also recruited individuals to join AQAP, facilitated training at camps in Yemen in support of acts of terrorism, and helped focus AQAP's attention on planning attacks beyond the Arabian Peninsula. 

Since late 2009, Al-Aulaqi has taken on an increasingly operational role in the group, including preparing Umar Farouk Abdulmutallab for his attempted bombing of a Northwest Airlines flight traveling between Amsterdam and Detroit on 25 December 2009. In November 2009, while in Yemen, Abdulmutallab swore allegiance to the emir of AQAP and shortly thereafter received instructions from Al-Aulaqi to detonate an explosive device aboard a U.S. airplane over U.S. airspace. After receiving this direction from Al-Aulaqi, Abdulmutallab obtained the explosive device he used in the attempted attack. 

Al-Aulaqi was imprisoned in Yemen in 2006 on charges of kidnapping for ransom and being involved in an Al-Qaida (QE.A.4.01) plot to kidnap a U.S. official, but was released in December 2007 and subsequently went into hiding in Yemen. 

Related listed individuals and entities:
Al-Qaida (QE.4.01), listed on 6 October 2001
Al-Qaida in the Arabian Peninsula (AQAP) (QE.A.129.10), listed on 19 January 2010

Usama Muhammed Awad bin Laden (QI.B.8.01), listed on 25 January 2001 
Nasir ‘abd-al-Karim ‘Abdullah al-Wahishi (QI.A.274.10), listed on 19 January 2010
Said Ali al-Shihri (QI.A.275.10), listed on 19 January 2010
Nayif bin-Muhammad al-Qahtani (QI.A.281.10), listed on 11 May 2010
Qasim Yahya Mahdi al-Rimi (QI.A.282.10), listed on 11 May 2010
Fahd Mohammed Ahmed al-Quso (QI.A.288.10), listed on 7 December 2010
Ibrahim Hassan Tali al-Asiri (QI.A.291.11), listed on 24 March 2011
Othman Ahmed Othman al-Ghamdi (QI.A.292.11), listed on 16 June 2011

QI.K.284.10. MOHAMMAD ILYAS KASHMIRI
Date on which the narrative summary became available on the Committee’s website:  6 August 2010

Mohammad Ilyas Kashmiri was listed on 6 August 2010 pursuant to paragraphs 1 and 2 of resolution 1904 (2009) as being associated with Al-Qaida, Usama bin Laden or the Taliban for “participating in the financing, planning, facilitating, preparing or perpetrating of acts or activities by, in conjunction with, under the name of, on behalf or in support of” Al-Qaida (QE.A.4.01) and Harakat-ul Jihad Islami (QE.H.130.10). 

Additional information:
Mohammad Ilyas Kashmiri is a leader of Harakat-ul Jihad Islami (HUJI) (QE.H.130.10) and provides support to Al-Qaida (QE.A.4.01) operations. Kashmiri has led HUJI training camps since 2001, when he was the head of a camp that specialized in terrorist operations, military tactics and cross-border operations. In early 2009, Kashmiri operated a militant training center in Miram Shah, North Waziristan in the Federally Administered Tribal Areas of Pakistan. Of the approximately 160 individuals undergoing training at the center, 55 were reportedly being trained for suicide attacks.

Kashmiri has provided logistical support for Al-Qaida terrorist attacks. Specifically, Kashmiri has supported attacks against Pakistani government personnel and facilities, including the mid-2009 attack against the offices of the Directorate for Inter-Services Intelligence (ISI) of Pakistan and the Pakistani police in Lahore, Pakistan, that killed 23 people and left hundreds injured. Kashmiri led an Al-Qaida-linked cell in planning the assassination of a Pakistani Army general — a plan that was eventually shelved.

Kashmiri also plotted the October 2008 assassination of the former commander of the Pakistani Special Services Group, General Amir Faisal Alvi, in retaliation for his role in the fight against militants in the Federally Administered Tribal Areas of Pakistan.

Kashmiri has been affiliated with militant organizations for over 20 years and was listed as one of the ten most-wanted terrorists by the Pakistani Interior Ministry in 2009. Kashmiri has been indicted in the United States for providing material support to Lashkar-e-Tayyiba (QE.L.118.05) operative David Coleman Headley who planned a terrorist attack against the Jyllands-Posten newspaper offices in Denmark.  

Related listed individuals and entities:

Al-Qaida (QE.A.4.01), listed on 6 October 2001
Lashkar-e-Tayyiba (QE.L.118.05), listed on 2 May 2005
Harakat-ul Jihad Islami (QE.H.130.10), listed on 6 August 2010 

QI.A.285.10. MUHAMMAD ABDALLAH HASAN ABU-AL-KHAYR

Date on which the narrative summary became available on the Committee’s website: 24 August 2010

Muhammad Abdallah Hasan Abu-al-Khayr was listed on 24 August 2010 pursuant to paragraph 2 of resolution 1904 (2009) as being associated with Al-Qaida, Usama bin Laden or the Taliban for “participating in the financing, planning, facilitating, preparing, or perpetrating of acts or activities by, in conjunction with, under the name of, on behalf or in support of”, “recruiting for” or “otherwise supporting acts or activities of” Al-Qaida (QE.A.4.01).

Additional information:
Muhammad Abdallah Hasan Abu-al-Khayr is a leader of Al-Qaida’s (QE.A.4.01) finance section. He has transferred many thousands of dollars in preparation for a terrorist attack. Abu-al-Khayr also acts for Al-Qaida in a leadership role on its media committee, and has on at least one occasion recruited a member for Al-Qaida. A son-in-law of Usama bin Laden (QI.B.8.01), he has also acted as a bodyguard to Bin Laden and a caretaker of his wives. 

Abu-al-Khayr’s relationship with Al-Qaida began when he undertook military training with the group in the mid-1990s. He appears on a 2009 list of 85 persons wanted by the government of Saudi Arabia, in part because of his role as an Al-Qaida financial facilitator.

Related listed individuals and entities:
Al-Qaida (QE.A.4.01), listed on 6 October 2001

Usama Muhammed Awad bin Laden (QI.B.8.01), listed on 25 January 2001 

QI.M.286.10. HAKIMULLAH MEHSUD

Date on which the narrative summary became available on the Committee’s website: 21 October 2010

Hakimullah Mehsud was listed on 21 October 2010 pursuant to paragraph 2 of resolution 1904 (2009) as being associated with Al-Qaida, Usama bin Laden or the Taliban for “participating in the financing, planning, facilitating, preparing, or perpetrating of acts or activities by, in conjunction with, under the name of, on behalf of, or in support of”, “recruiting for”, and “otherwise supporting acts or activities of” Al-Qaida (QE.A.4.01), the Taliban and Tehrik-e Taliban Pakistan (TTP) (QE.T.132.11). 

Additional information:
Hakimullah Mehsud became the leader of Tehrik-e Taliban Pakistan (TTP) (QE.T.132.11) in August 2009. TTP is a militant organization composed of disparate armed groups that have coalesced under one banner and is based in the tribal areas along the Afghanistan/Pakistan border. TTP has been implicated in many terrorist attacks in Pakistan and is believed to be closely linked to both the Haqqani Network – an insurgent group on the Afghanistan/Pakistan border which is also allied with the Afghan Taliban – and Al-Qaida (QE.A.4.01). TTP also works closely with some elements of the Afghan Taliban.

TTP was originally led by Baitullah Mehsud; Hakimullah Mehsud, Baitullah’s cousin, became TTP’s leader when Baitullah was killed in August 2009. Prior to assuming the role of TTP leader, Hakimullah Mehsud was one of several commanders serving under Baitullah’s leadership.  He came to prominence in 2007 after a series of deadly raids against the Pakistani army, and he led Taliban fighters in three of Pakistan’s tribal regions. Baitullah Mehsud consolidated most of Pakistan’s Taliban-affiliated groups under the umbrella of TTP, during which time Hakimullah Mehsud became Baitullah Mehsud’s spokesman and deputy.

Under Mehsud’s leadership, TTP has claimed responsibility for multiple bombings and other attacks in Pakistan that have targeted both civilians and officials and left scores dead.  These included a 2009 attack on the Pearl Continental Hotel in Peshawar that killed seven people, including two United Nations personnel, an attack on the U.S. Consulate in Peshawar in April 2010 that killed at least six Pakistani nationals and wounded 20 others, and an attempted bombing near Times Square in New York City on 1 May 2010. Also under Mehsud’s leadership, TTP has claimed responsibility for a March 2010 attack on a police building in Lahore that killed 13 and wounded approximately 65 and a suicide attack on a military base in eastern Afghanistan on 30 December 2009. Mehsud has appeared in videos produced by TTP in which he claimed responsibility for these and other attacks. 

Mehsud was reportedly born in South Waziristan, Pakistan, and is believed to be residing in Pakistan.

Related listed individuals and entities:
Al-Qaida (QE.A.4.01), listed on 6 October 2001
Tehrik-e Taliban Pakistan (TTP) (QE.T.132.11), listed on 29 July 2011

Wali Ur Rehman (QI.U.287.10), listed on 21 October 2010

QI.U.287.10. WALI UR REHMAN

Date on which the narrative summary became available on the Committee’s website: 21 October 2010

Wali Ur Rehman was listed on 21 October 2010 pursuant to paragraph 2 of resolution 1904 (2009) as being associated with Al-Qaida, Usama bin Laden or the Taliban for “participating in the financing, planning, facilitating, preparing, or perpetrating of acts or activities by, in conjunction with, under the name of, on behalf of, or in support of”, “recruiting for”, and “otherwise supporting acts or activities of” Al-Qaida (QE.A.4.01), the Taliban, and Tehrik-e Taliban Pakistan (TTP) (QE.T.132.11).

Additional information:
Wali Ur Rehman is the emir (leader) of Tehrik-e Taliban Pakistan (TTP) (QE.T.132.11) in Southwest Waziristan Agency (SWA), Federally Administered Tribal Areas (FATA), Pakistan. TTP is a militant organization composed of disparate armed groups that have coalesced under one banner and is based in the tribal areas along the Afghanistan/Pakistan border. TTP has been implicated in many terrorist attacks in Pakistan and is believed to be closely linked to both the Haqqani Network – an insurgent group on the Afghanistan/Pakistan border which is also allied with the Afghan Taliban – and Al-Qaida (QE.A.4.01). TTP also works closely with some elements of the Afghan Taliban.

Ur Rehman has participated in attacks on International Security Assistance Force personnel in Afghanistan, as well as attacks against Pakistani security forces.

Ur Rehman’s high-ranking position involves him in planning the group’s terrorist activities. TTP has claimed responsibility for multiple bombings in Pakistan that have targeted civilian institutions and left scores dead, as well as the attempted bombing near Times Square in New York City on 1 May 2010. Under Ur Rehman’s tenure as emir for SWA, TTP claimed responsibility for a major attack on the U.S. Consulate in Peshawar in April 2010 that killed at least six Pakistani nationals and wounded 20 others. 

Ur Rehman was reportedly born in South Waziristan, Pakistan, and is believed to be residing in Pakistan.

Related listed individuals and entities:
Al-Qaida (QE.A.4.01), listed on 6 October 2001

Tehrik-e Taliban Pakistan (TTP) (QE.T.132.11), listed on 29 July 2011

Hakimullah Mehsud (QI.M.286.10), listed on 21 October 2010

QI.A.288.10. FAHD MOHAMMED AHMED AL-QUSO

Date on which the narrative summary became available on the Committee’s website: 07 December 2010

Fahd Mohammed Ahmed al-Quso was listed on 7 December 2010 pursuant to paragraph 2 of resolution 1904 (2009) as being associated with Al-Qaida, Usama bin Laden or the Taliban for “participating in the financing, planning, facilitating, preparing, or perpetrating of acts or activities by, in conjunction with, under the name of, on behalf of, or in support of”, “recruiting for”, or “otherwise supporting acts or activities of” Al-Qaida in the Arabian Peninsula (QE.A.129.10). 

Additional information:
Fahd Mohammed Ahmed al-Quso is an operative of Al-Qaida in the Arabian Peninsula (AQAP) (QE.A.129.10). Al-Quso acts as a cell leader in Shabwa province, Yemen. In May 2010, Al-Quso appeared in an AQAP video in which he threatened to attack western targets throughout the world.

In 2000, before joining AQAP, Al-Quso was involved in bombing of the USS Cole in the Port of Aden, Yemen which killed 17 U.S. citizens. For his actions, Al-Quso was indicted in the United States on charges of murder and conspiracy; he was later convicted and jailed in Yemen. In 2003 he escaped from prison but was recaptured in 2004. Since his release from prison in 2007, Al-Quso has joined AQAP and has continued publicly to threaten further terrorist activity. 

According to widespread open-source and official reporting Al-Quso is connected to other AQAP senior leaders, including Nasir al-Wahishi (QI.A.274.10), Said Ali al-Shihri (QI.A.275.10) and Anwar al-Aulaqi (QI.A.283.10).

Related listed individuals and entities:
Al-Qaida in the Arabian Peninsula (AQAP) (QE.A.129.10), listed on 19 January 2010

Nasir ‘abd-al-Karim ‘Abdullah al-Wahishi (QI.A.274.10), listed on 19 January 2010
Said Ali al-Shihri (QI.A.275.10), listed on 19 January 2010
Nayif bin-Muhammad al-Qahtani (QI.A.281.10), listed on 11 May 2010
Qasim Yahya Mahdi al-Rimi (QI.A.282.10), listed on 11 May 2010
Anwar Nasser Abdulla al-Aulaqi (QI.A.283.10), listed on 20 July 2010
Ibrahim Hassan Tali al-Asiri (QI.A.291.11), listed on 24 March 2011
Othman Ahmed Othman al-Ghamdi (QI.A.292.11), listed on 16 June 2011

